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Part I.   FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
Item 1.  Financial Statements.
 

Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.
Balance Sheets

 

  
March 31,

 2011   
December 31,

 2010  
  (Unaudited)   (Audited)  
Current assets:       

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,530,853  $ 40,361 
Investment in available-for-sale securities   2,527,891   4,015,544 
Other current assets   15,356   47,160 

Total current assets  $ 4,074,100  $ 4,103,065 
         
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity         
         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable  $ 19,525  $ 4,951 
Accrued stock compensation   12,500   25,000 

    Rent deposit   -   8,175 
Total current liabilities   32,025   38,126 
         
Commitments and contingencies         
         
Redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; 168 shares issued and

outstanding ($168,496 aggregate liquidation value)   168,496   168,496 
         
Stockholders’ equity:         

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 7,896,960 and 7,822,314 shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively   78,969   78,222 

Additional paid-in capital   64,250,119   64,225,865 
Accumulated deficit   (60,454,060)   (60,419,109)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   (1,449)   11,465 

Total stockholders’ equity   3,873,579   3,896,443 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 4,074,100  $ 4,103,065 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.
Statements of Operations

(Unaudited)
 

  
Three Months ended

March 31,  
  2011   2010  
       
Operating expenses       
       
General and administrative expenses  $ 64,547  $ 85,642 
         
Loss from operations   (64,547)   (85,642)
         
Other income         

Interest and dividend income, net   27,191   21,866 
Realized gain on available-for-sale securities   2,404   927 

         
Loss before income taxes   (34,952)   (62,848)
         
Income taxes   0   800 
         
Net loss  $ (34,952)  $ (63,648)
         
Other comprehensive income (loss)         

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities  $ (12,914)  $ 11,252 
         
Comprehensive loss  $ (47,866)  $ (52,396)
         
Basic net loss per common share  $ (0.00)  $ (0.01)
         
Diluted net loss per common share  $ (0.00)  $ (0.01)
         
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:         

Basic   7,857,978   7,701,258 
Diluted   7,857,978   7,701,258 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

  
Three Months ended

March 31,  
  2011   2010  
       
Cash flows from operating activities         
Net loss  $ (34,952)  $ (63,648)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by (used in) operating activities         

Stock-based compensation   12,500   12,500 
Realized gain on available-for-sale-securities    (2,404)    (927)
Changes in assets and liabilities         

Other current assets   31,805   15,657 
Accounts payable   14,575   6,680 
Accrued liabilities   -   15,000 
Deposits   (8,175)   - 
Deferred rent payable   -   (5,756)

Cash provided by (used in) operating activities   13,349   (20,494)
         
Cash flows from investing activities         

Purchases of available-for-sale securities   (118,571)   (1,797,954)
Sales of available-for-sale securities   192,650   139,579 
Maturities of available-for-sale securities   1,403,064   1,617,000 

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities   1,477,143   (41,375)
         
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   1,490,492   (61,869)
         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    40,361    210,966 
         
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 1,530,853  $ 149,097 
         
Supplemental cash flow disclosure:         
         

Income taxes paid  $  -  $  800 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.
 

Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)

1.   Organization and Operations
 
Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Delaware in 1990 to design, manufacture, sell and service image-directed, computer-
controlled robotic software and hardware products for use in orthopedic surgical procedures.  The Company’s products were authorized to be sold through
international distributors to hospitals and clinics in European Union member countries and Australia, Canada, India, Israel, Japan, Korea, New Zealand,
Switzerland and South Africa.
 
On June 28, 2007, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of its assets.  After completion of the sale, the Company became inactive, and it is no
longer engaged in any business activities related to its former business described above. The Company’s current operations are limited to raising additional
funds to be used to maintain the Company’s public company status and to complete investment(s) or a business combination if a suitable candidate for the
combination is located.
 
On June 28, 2007, the stockholders approved the liquidation of the Company if the Company was unable to complete an acquisition or similar transaction
within one year of the sale of its assets.  With this approval, the stockholders also granted the Board of Directors the authority to delay, revoke or abandon any
decision to liquidate without further stockholder action if it determined that the liquidation was not in the best interests of the Company or its
stockholders.  The Board of Directors has determined that it currently is not in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to liquidate the
Company.
 
2.   Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation
 
The accompanying unaudited financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America for interim financial statements and with the rules and regulations under Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange
Commission for Form 10-Q. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America for complete financial statements presentation.  In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring
accruals) considered necessary to present fairly the financial position as of March 31, 2011 and results of operations and cash flows for the three months then
ended have been included. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of the Company and the Company’s
management discussion and analysis included in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010. Interim results are not necessarily
indicative of the results for a full year.
 
The financial statements include all the accounts of the Company.
 
Use of estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and revenues and expenses for the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include checking and money market accounts held in two financial institutions.  The Company has a checking account at one
institution with a balance of approximately $10,000 at March 31, 2011.  The funds in this account are fully guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation as of March 31, 2011.  The Company has a money market account in a brokerage account with a second financial institution, invested in short-
term federal securities and corporate bonds, with a money market cash balance of approximately $1,521,000 at March 31, 2011.  Assets in this brokerage
account are guaranteed by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) up to $500,000, including up to $100,000 for cash.  The remaining portion
of this account portfolio was valued at approximately $2,528,000 at March 31, 2011, of which as of that date approximately $400,000 was covered by SIPC
protection available after covering the cash balance, leaving approximately $2,128,000 uninsured.
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Investment in Available-for-Sale Securities

The Company has a portfolio of investments in available-for-sale debt securities, which consist of fixed income debt securities, which are accounted for in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 320, “Investments - Debt and Equity Securities.”  Management determines the appropriate
classification of the securities at the time they are acquired and evaluates the appropriateness of such classifications at each balance sheet date.  Available-for-
sale securities are stated at fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses, net of the related deferred tax effect, if any, are reported as other
comprehensive income, a separate component of stockholders’ equity.
 
Fair Value Measurement

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157) clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that is determined based on assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing an asset or a liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, ASC 820 establishes a three-tier value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation methodologies in measuring fair value:
 
 ● Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

 ● Level 2 - Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
 
 ● Level 3 - Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.
 
The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value.
 
In accordance with FASB ASC 820, the Company measures its cash and investment in available-for-sale securities at fair value. The Company’s cash and
investment in available-for-sale securities are classified within Level 1 by using quoted market prices.

The carrying value of cash accounts, other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities are considered to be representative of their respective fair
values because of the short-term nature of those instruments.
 
Fair Value Instruments

FASB ASC 825 “Financial Instruments” (formerly SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”) permits entities
to choose to measure at fair value many financial instruments and certain other items that had previously not been required to be measured at fair value.
Subsequent changes in fair value for designated items are required to be reported in earnings in the current period. FASB ASC 825 also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements for similar types of assets and liabilities measured at fair value. As permitted by FASB ASC 825, the Company has
elected not to use the fair value option to measure the Company’s available-for-sale securities and will continue to report under FASB ASC 320,
“Investments-Debt and Equity Securities”. The Company has made this election because it believes the nature of its financial assets and liabilities are not so
complex that they would benefit from a change in valuation to fair value.
 
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
 
In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2010-06, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” (Topic 820): Improving Disclosures
about Fair Value Measurements.  This guidance amends the disclosure requirements related to recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements and
requires new disclosures on the transfers of assets and liabilities between Level 1 (quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities) and Level 2
(significant other observable inputs) of the fair value measurement hierarchy, including the reasons and the timing of the transfers. Additionally, the guidance
requires a roll forward of activities on purchases, sales, issuance and settlements of the assets and liabilities measured using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3 fair value measurements). The guidance became effective for the reporting period beginning January 1, 2010, except for the disclosure on the roll
forward activities for Level 3 fair value measurements, which became effective for the reporting period beginning January 1, 2011. Adoption of this new
guidance did not, and the Company expects that it will not, have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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In December 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards 2010-29, “Business Combinations” (Topic 805): Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma
Information for Business Combinations.  This guidance amends the disclosure requirements by Securities and Exchange Commission filers by requiring
disclosure of pro forma information for business combinations that occurred in the current reporting period.  The disclosures include pro forma revenue and
earnings of the combined entity for the current reporting period as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during the year had
been as of the beginning of the annual reporting period. If comparative financial statements are presented, the pro forma revenue and earnings of the
combined entity for the comparable prior reporting period should be reported as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during
the current year had been as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period.  In practice, some filers have presented the pro forma
information in their comparative financial statements as if the business combination that occurred in the current reporting period had occurred as of the
beginning of each of the current and prior annual reporting periods.  Other filers have disclosed the pro forma information as if the business combination
occurred at the beginning of the prior annual reporting period only, and carried forward the related adjustments, if applicable, through the current reporting
period.  This became effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after December 15, 2010.  Adoption of this new guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective accounting pronouncements, if adopted, would have a material effect on the
accompanying financial statements.
 
3.   Income (Loss) Per Share
 
Basic income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
period. Diluted net income (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during the period plus dilutive common stock equivalents, using the treasury stock method.
 
Common stock equivalents for convertible preferred stock of 535,758 were excluded from the calculation of loss per share for the three month period ended
March 31, 2011 because they were not dilutive; these shares would have been dilutive if the Company had not had a net loss for the those periods.  Common
stock equivalents for convertible preferred stock of 600,769 shares were excluded from the calculation of loss per share for the three month periods ended
March 31, 2010 because they were not dilutive; these shares would have been dilutive if the Company had not had a net loss for the those periods.
 
A warrant for 30,000 shares, and stock options of 158,000 were excluded from the calculation of loss per share for the periods ended March 31, 2011 and
2010, because their effect was anti-dilutive; these warrants and options would have been dilutive if the Company had not had a net loss for those periods.
 
4.   Investment in Available-for-Sale Securities
 
The following is a summary of the Company’s investment in available-for-sale securities as of March 31, 2011:
 

  Cost   
Unrealized

Gains   
Unrealized

Losses   Fair Value  
U.S. federal agency securities  $ 50,610  $ 963  $ -  $ 51,573 
Corporate securities   1,715,317   19,157   (10,016)   1,724,458 
Certificates of deposit   763,414   932   (12,486)   751,860 
  $ 2,529,341  $ 21,052  $ (22,502)  $ 2,527,891 
 
The Company’s investment portfolio had a gross realized gain of $2,404 and a gain of $927 for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.  The Company’s investment portfolio has thirteen positions with an unrealized loss as of March 31, 2011.
 
The cost and fair value of investment in available-for-sale debt securities, by contractual maturity, as of March 31, 2011, were as follows:
 
  Cost   Fair Value  
Due within one year  $ 928,720  $ 924,797 
Due after one year through three years   1,448,365   1,450,231 
Due after three years   152,256   152,863 
  $ 2,529,341  $ 2,527,891 
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Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of certain debt securities have the right to call or prepay their obligations
without any penalties.  Accordingly, the Company has classified the entire fair value of its investment in available-for-sale debt securities as current assets in
the accompanying balance sheets.
 
5.   Common Stock
 
The Company agreed to compensate two of its directors in the form of common stock for 2010 and 2011.  The number of shares issued to each director is
determined based upon the equivalent cash compensation accrued divided by the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the last day of each
quarter for which the shares were earned. See Note 7.  Both directors are affiliated with the advisory services firm that is currently providing investment
banking services to the Company.
 
On February 16, 2011, the Company issued 18,383 and 18,940 respectively, shares of common stock to each of two directors as compensation for the three
months ended September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010, respectively.  The number of shares issued total 74,646 during the three months ended March 31,
2011, and the shares were valued at an average of approximately $0.34, or a total value of $25,000.  The shares were valued at the closing price on the last
day of each quarter for which the shares were earned.  The Company has not yet issued any shares to these directors as compensation for the three months
ended March 31, 2011.
 
6.   Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
 
The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation authorized 1,000,000 shares of undesignated, serial preferred stock. Preferred stock may be issued from time to
time in one or more series. The Board of Directors is authorized to determine the rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions granted to and imposed upon
any wholly unissued series of preferred stock and designation of any such series without any further vote or action by the Company’s stockholders.

As of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company’s only outstanding series of convertible preferred stock is the Series G Convertible Preferred
Stock (“Series G”).

The Series G stock has a stated value of $1,000 per share, and is convertible into common stock at a conversion price equal to 85% of the lowest sale price of
the common stock on its listed market over the five trading days preceding the date of conversion, subject to a maximum conversion price. The number of
shares of common stock that may be converted is determined by dividing the stated value of the number of shares of Series G to be converted by the
conversion price. The Company may elect to pay the Series G holder in cash at the current market price multiplied by the number of shares of common stock
issuable upon conversion.

For the period ended March 31, 2011 and the year ended December 31, 2010, no shares of Series G were converted into shares of common stock.  At March
31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the outstanding Series G shares were convertible into a minimum of 535,758 and 600,699 shares of common stock,
respectively.

Upon a change in control, sale of assets or similar transaction, as defined in the Certificate of Designation for the Series G, each holder of the Series G has the
option to deem such transaction as a liquidation and may redeem his or her shares at the liquidation value of $1,000, per share, for an aggregate amount of
$168,496.  The sale of all the assets on June 28, 2007 triggered the preferred stockholders’ redemption of option.  As such redemption is not in control of the
Company, the Series G stock has been accounted for as if it was redeemable preferred stock and is classified on the balance sheet between liabilities and
stockholders’ equity.

The conversion feature of the preferred stock is considered a derivative according to ASC 815 “Derivatives and Hedging”, however, the fair values of the
derivative as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 were not material, and therefore are not reflected in the financial statements.
 
7.   Stock-based compensation
 
The Company currently has two stock option plans with outstanding options issued to its officers, employees, directors and consultants.  The 1998 Stock
Option Plan (“1998 Plan”) was established to grant up to 85,000 non-qualified options through May 12, 2008 to employees and other individuals providing
services to the Company. Options under the 1998 Plan vest from one year to four years from the date of grant, and vested options must be exercised within 30
days of an employee’s termination.  As of March 31, 2011, 58,000 options remain outstanding under the 1998 Plan.   The 2000 Stock Award Plan (“2000
Plan”) was established to grant up to 100,000 incentive options through December 11, 2010 to employees, excluding officers and directors, and other
individuals providing services to the Company. Options under the 2000 Plan vest from one year to four years from the date of grant, and vested options must
be exercised within three months of an employee’s termination. As of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the 2000 Plan had expired; no options were
available for future grant.
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Under both the 1998 Plan and the 2000 Plan, exercise prices of incentive stock options may not be less than 100%, and exercise prices of non-statutory stock
options may not be less than 85%, of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant.  For persons owning 10% or more than the voting
power of all classes of the Company's stock, the exercise price of the incentive or the non-qualified stock options may not be less than 110% of the fair market
value of the common stock on the date of grant.  Both plans are administered by the Company's board of directors.
 
FASB ASC 718 “Compensation-Stock Compensation” (formerly SFAS 123(R)) requires entities to estimate the number of forfeitures expected to occur and
record expense based upon the number of awards expected to vest.   The outstanding stock options under the 2000 Plan have been fully vested and related
expenses were fully amortized for the three months ended March 31, 2011.
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2011, option activity was as follows:
 

  
 

Shares   

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price   

Remaining
Contractual

Term   
Aggregate
Fair Value  

Outstanding at beginning of period   158,000  $ 0.36       
Granted   -   -       
Expired and forfeited   -   -       
Exercised   -   -       
Outstanding at end of period   158,000  $ 0.36   1.96  $ 43,335 
                 
Exercisable at March 31, 2011   158,000  $ 0.36   1.96  $ 43,335 
 
All of the Company’s granted and outstanding options were vested at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.
 
As of March 31, 2011, a summary of options outstanding under the Company’s 1998 Plan and 2000 Plan was as follows:

Range of
Exercise

Price  
Weighted-Average  Remaining Contractual  Life

(Years)  

Number
Outstanding
at 3/31/2011   

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price   

Number
Exercisable
at 3/31/2011   

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price  
0.00-9.99  1.96   158,000  $ 0.36   158,000  $ 0.36 
 
In addition, the Company has outstanding 30,000 warrants issued in lieu of consulting fees, which expire in July 2014 and have an exercise price of $0.63 per
share.
 
The Company agreed to compensate two of its directors in the form of common stock for 2010 and three of its directors in the form of common stock for
2011.  The number of shares issued to each director is determined based upon the equivalent cash compensation accrued divided by the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the last day of each quarter for which the shares were earned.  The Company recorded accrued stock-based compensation of
$25,000 as of December 31, 2010 for two directors.  The closing stock prices on September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2010 were $0.34 and $0.33,
respectively, resulting in compensation of 18,383 and 18,940 shares to each of the two directors for the third quarter and fourth quarter of 2010,
respectively.  These shares were issued on February 16, 2011.  The Company recorded stock-based compensation for the three months ended March 31, 2011
of $12,500 total for two directors.  The closing stock price on March 31, 2011 was $0.37 resulting in compensation of 16,892 shares to each of two directors
for the three months ended March 31, 2011, and these shares have not yet been issued to the directors.
 
8.   Income Taxes
 
The Company accounts for income taxes under FASB ASC 740 “Accounting for Income Taxes.”  Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary
differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.
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Federal and state income tax returns for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are subject to review by the taxing authorities.
 
The Company has evaluated and concluded that there are no uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the Company’s financial statements for the three
months ended March 31, 2011.  The tax expense for the three months ended March 31, 2011 is zero and for the three months ended March 31, 2010 was $800.
 
Income tax provision consisted of the following for 2011:

  Federal   California   2011  
          
Current provision   -  $ 800  $ 800 
             
Deferred provision:             

Deferred tax – beg of year   -   -   - 
Deferred tax – end of year   -   -   - 

Change in deferred   -   -   - 
Subtotal   -   -   - 
             
Total Provision   -  $ 800  $ 800 

 
 Income tax provision consisted of the following for 2010:

  Federal   California   2010  
          
Current provision   -  $ 800  $ 800 
             
Deferred provision:             

Deferred tax – beg of year   -   -   - 
Deferred tax – end of year   -   -   - 

Change in deferred   -   -   - 
Subtotal   -   -   - 
             
Total Provision   -  $ 800  $ 800 

 
As of March 31, 2011, and December 31, 2010 the Company had deferred tax assets primarily consisting of its net operating loss carryforward.  However,
because of the cumulative losses in several consecutive years, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance such that its net deferred tax asset is zero.

The Company must also make judgments as to whether the deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the extent that the Company
believes that recovery is not likely, it must establish a valuation allowance.  A valuation allowance has been established for deferred tax assets which the
Company does not believe meet the “more likely than not” criteria.  The Company’s judgments regarding future taxable income may change due to changes
in market conditions, changes in tax laws, tax planning strategies or other factors.  If the Company’s assumptions and consequently its estimates change in the
future, the valuation allowances it has  established may be increased or decreased, resulting in a respective increase or decrease in income tax expense.

In July 2006, the FASB issued authoritative guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, contained in ASC 740-10, which requires that realization
of an uncertain income tax position must be more likely than not (i.e., greater than 50% likelihood of receiving a benefit) before it can be recognized in the
financial statements.  The guidance further prescribes the benefit to be realized assuming a review by tax authorities having all relevant information and
applying current conventions.  The interpretation also clarifies the financial statements classification of tax related penalties and interest and set forth new
disclosures regarding unrecognized tax benefits.  The adoption of ASC 740-10 did not have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position
or cash flow.

The Company follows guidance issued by the FASB with regard to its accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the financial statements. Such
guidance prescribes a recognition threshold of more likely than not and a measurement process for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In making this assessment, a company must determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax
position will be sustained upon examination, based solely on the technical merits of the position and must assume that the tax position will be examined by
taxing authorities.  The Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties in general and administrative expenses.  There were no interest and penalties
recorded for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.  The Company’s review of prior year tax positions using the criteria and provisions presented
in guidance issued by the FASB did not result in a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
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9.   Related Party Transactions
 
In July 2008, the Company retained Tomczak & Co. CPA LLP, an accounting firm in which Michael Tomczak, who was an officer and is a director, is a
partner to perform accounting and administrative services.  During the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid this firm $0 and
$5,300, respectively.
 
The Company entered into an Investment Banking Advisory Services agreement in November 2007 with MDB Capital Group, LLC (“MDB”), and the parties
extended this agreement indefinitely in April 2009.  The agreement may be terminated by either party upon 30-days written notice.  The Company has a
securities investment account with MDB, consisting of (a) available-for-sale investments totaling $2,527,891, including short-term federal securities of
$803,434 and certificates of deposit and corporate bonds totaling $1,724,457, at March 31, 2011, and (b) available-for-sale investments totaling $4,015,544,
including short-term federal securities of $274,342 and certificates of deposit and corporate bonds totaling $3,741,202, at December 31, 2010.  Mr.
Christopher Marlett, the Chief Executive Officer and director of the Company, is the Chief Executive Officer and a director of MDB.  Mr. Gary Schuman,
who is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Compliance Officer of MDB.  The Company reimburses MDB
for Mr. Schuman’s services in the amount of $3,000 per month, totaling $9,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.  Mr. Robert Levande,
who is an officer and director of the Company, is a senior managing director of MDB.

On April 20, 2011, the Company purchased 363,636 shares (the “Company ClearSign Shares”) of common stock of ClearSign Combustion Corporation, a
Washington corporation (“ClearSign”), for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1,000,000, or $2.75 per share, in connection with ClearSign’s
private offering of up to $3,000,000 of its common stock (the “ClearSign Offering”).  ClearSign is an early-stage clean energy company focused on
developing technology to increase energy efficiency in most types of industrial combustion systems.

MDB acted as placement agent in connection with the ClearSign Offering, and in consideration for its services was issued 109,091 shares of ClearSign’s
common stock (in lieu of a cash fee of 10% of the gross proceeds of the ClearSign Offering) and a 5-year warrant to purchase 109,091 shares of ClearSign’s
common stock at an exercise price of $2.75 per share.  As described above, Messrs. Marlett and Levande, each an officer, director and stockholder of the
Company, are the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Managing Director, respectively, of MDB.

In addition, at the close of the offering MDB received 363,636 shares of ClearSign in consideration of other consulting services provided by MDB unrelated
to its role as placement agent.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
 
From time to time, the Company may be subject to other claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.  The Company is not currently a
party to any legal proceedings that it believes would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
or results of operations.

11. Subsequent Event
 
On April 20, 2011, the Company purchased 363,636 shares of common stock of ClearSign, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $1,000,000, or
$2.75 per share, in connection with ClearSign’s private offering of up to $3,000,000 of its common stock.  ClearSign is an early-stage clean energy company
focused on developing technology to increase energy efficiency in most types of industrial combustion systems.  See Note 9 above.

The agreement pursuant to which the Company purchased ClearSign Shares obligates ClearSign to, among other things, use reasonable best efforts to file a
registration statement covering the registration of ClearSign’s common stock within 120 days of the initial closing of the ClearSign Offering as well as to
concurrently file a separate registration statement covering the Company’s ClearSign Shares.  The Company’s ClearSign Shares are subject to a lock-up of up
to 180 days, except to the extent the Company distributes the Company’s ClearSign Shares to its stockholders, in which case only those ClearSign Shares held
by Messrs. Marlett and Levande shall be subject to such lock-up.
 

 
12



Table of Contents

Item 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
 
Forward-Looking Statements
 
The discussion in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on current
expectations, estimates and projections and certain assumptions made by management of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc. (the “Company”). Words such as
“anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “could,” “would,” “may,” “on target,” “envisions,” and variations of such words
and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject
to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict; therefore, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in
any such forward-looking statements. Unless required by law, the Company undertakes no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. However, readers should carefully review the risk factors set forth in other reports or
documents the Company files from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), particularly the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any Current Reports on Form 8-K.
 
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial statements and notes thereto in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q and with the audited financial statements and Notes thereto, and Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations that are included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 as filed with the SEC.
 
Overview
 
The Company was incorporated in Delaware in 1990 to design, manufacture, sell and service image-directed, computer-controlled robotic software and
hardware products for use in orthopedic surgical procedures.  The Company’s products were sold through international distributors to hospitals and clinics in
European Union member countries and Australia, Canada, India, Israel, Japan, Korea, New Zealand, Switzerland and South Africa.
 
On June 28, 2007, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of its assets.  After completion of the sale, the Company became inactive, and it is no
longer engaged in any business activities related to its former business described above. The Company’s current operations are limited to raising additional
funds to be used to maintain the Company’s public company status and to complete investment(s) or a business combination if a suitable candidate for the
combination is located.
 
On June 28, 2007, the Company’s stockholders approved the liquidation of the Company if the Company was unable to complete an acquisition or similar
transaction by June 28, 2008, one year after the sale of the assets.  With this approval, the stockholders also granted the Board of Directors the authority to
delay, revoke or abandon any decision to dissolve, without further stockholder action, if it determined that the liquidation was not in the best interests of the
Company or its stockholders.  The Board of Directors has determined that it currently is not in the best interests of the Company or its stockholders to
liquidate the Company.
 
Results of Operations
 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 and 2010
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company had a net loss of $34,952 and $63,648, respectively.  General and administrative expenses
were $65,547 and $85,642 for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  Legal fees decreased by approximately $10,000 for the three
months ended March 31, 2011 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2010, and accounting fees decreased by approximately $4,000 for the three
months ended March 31, 2011 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2010 due to efforts to reduce legal and accounting costs.  Insurance expense
decreased by approximately $5,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2011 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2010 due to efforts to lower
premiums.  Net interest income was approximately $27,200 and $22,000, for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The increase in
the current period was due to a higher percentage of funds being invested in bonds yielding a higher return than in the same period of the previous year.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
The Company believes that existing cash and cash equivalents of approximately $1,531,000 as of March 31, 2011 will provide sufficient working capital for
the Company to meet its operating plan for the balance of 2011.  Short-term available-for-sale-securities can be readily liquidated to provide additional
working capital.  The Board of Directors has retained its directors, including a director as its Chief Executive Officer, another director as its Secretary, and the
Chief Financial Officer of a related party as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, to assist with its continuing obligations under the federal securities laws
and to assist with the Company’s plan to evaluate various merger, acquisition or strategic alliance opportunities.  The Company does not have an estimate as
to when it will identify a qualified merger, acquisition or strategic alliance candidate.  There is no assurance that such opportunities will be available, or if
available, upon favorable terms.  If the Company is unsuccessful in completing investment(s) or a suitable combination, then the Board of Directors may
liquidate the Company and distribute all its remaining assets, which consist primarily of cash and available-for-sale securities, to its stockholders.
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The Company anticipates that it will incur losses from continuing operations in the next 12 months, until it enters into a business combination or until its
liquidation.
 
Cash provided by operating activities was $13,349 for the three months ended March 31, 2011, and cash used in operating activities was $20,494 for the three
months ended March 31, 2010.  Cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2011 was primarily due to (i) the Company’s net
loss from operations of $34,952 offset by adding back non-cash expenses of $12,500 and (ii) changes in the Company’s assets and liabilities of $38,205
consisting of a decrease in other current assets of $31,805, an increase in accounts payable of $14,575, and a decrease in deposits payable of $8,175.  Cash
used in operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2010 was due primarily to (a) the Company’s net loss from operations of $63,648 offset by
adding back non-cash expenses of $12,500 and (b) changes in the Company’s assets and liabilities of $31,581, consisting of an increase in other current assets
of $15,657, an increase in accounts payable of $6,680, an increase in accrued liabilities of $15,000, and a decrease in deferred rent payable of $5,756.
 
Cash provided by investing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2011 of $1,477,143 was from the sale and maturity of available-for-sale securities
of $1,595,714, offset by the purchase of available-for-sale securities of $118,571.  Cash used in investing activities for the three months ended March 31,
2010 of $41,375 was for the purchase of available-for-sale securities of $1,797,954, offset by the maturity and sale of available-for-sale securities of
$1,756,579.
 
The Company does not have any material commitments for capital expenditures.
 
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on its financial condition,
changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, liquidity or capital resources that are material to its investors.
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
The Company’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations are based upon the Company’s unaudited financial statements
included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q and has been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as
disclosed in the Company’s annual financial statements in its Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010.  Interim results are not necessarily indicative
of the results for a full year.
 
Estimates
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
Investment in Available-for-Sale Securities
 
The Company has a portfolio of investments in available-for-sale debt securities, which consist of fixed income debt securities, which is accounted for in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 320, “Investments - Debt and Equity Securities.”  Management determines the appropriate
classification of the securities at the time they are acquired and evaluates the appropriateness of such classifications at each balance sheet date.  Available-for-
sale securities are stated at fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses, net of the related deferred tax effect, if any, are reported as other
comprehensive income, a separate component of stockholders’ equity.
 
Financial Instruments
 
The Company considers the carrying amounts of financial instruments, including cash, accounts payable and accrued expenses, to approximate their fair
values because of their relatively short maturities.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
 
Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact the Company’s financial position, operating results or cash flows due to changes in U.S. interest
rates.  The Company’s exposure to market risk is confined to its available-for-sale investments that it expects to hold less than one year.  The goals of the
Company’s cash investment policy are the security of the principal amount invested and fulfillment of liquidity needs.  The Company currently does not
hedge interest rate exposure.  Because of the short-term nature of its investments, the Company does not believe that an increase in market rates would have
any material negative impact on the value of its investment portfolio.
 
As of March 31, 2011, the Company held $1,530,853 in money market and checking accounts.  The Company has a checking account at one major banking
institution with a balance of $10,175 at March 31, 2011.   This checking account is guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000
per institution.  The Company has a money market account in a brokerage account with a third financial institution, with a balance of $1,520,678 at March 31,
2011.  The funds in the money market account at this institution are guaranteed by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation up to $100,000.  The
Company had uninsured money market funds of $1,420,678 at March 31, 2011.
 
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
 
The Company’s management has established and maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended).  As of March 31, 2011, the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures.  Based on this evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of that date, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
 
No changes to the Company’s internal control over financial reporting were identified in connection with the evaluation referenced above that occurred during
the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.
 
A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system
are met.  Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and
instances of management override or improper acts, if any, have been detected. Because of the inherent limitations in a control system, misstatements due to
management override, error or improper acts may occur and not be detected.  Any resulting misstatement or loss may have an adverse and material effect on
the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Part II. OTHER INFORMATION
 
Item 1.  Legal Proceedings
 
From time to time, the Company may be subject to other claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.  The Company is not currently a
party to any legal proceedings that it believes would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition
or results of operations.
 
Item 6.  Exhibits
 
Exhibit No. Description
3.1 Articles of Incorporation (1)
3.2 By-laws (1)
10.1 ClearSign Combustion Corporation Subscription Agreement, dated April 20, 2011, by and between Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc. and

ClearSign Combustion Corporation (2)
31.1 Certification Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) of Christopher A. Marlett *
31.2 Certification Pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) of Gary A. Schuman *
32.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Christopher A. Marlett  *
32.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 of Gary A. Schuman *

(1) Incorporated by reference to Form SB-2 filed on July 30, 1996 (file no. 333-09207)
(2) The Company hereby agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any omitted schedule (or similar attachment) to the

Securities and Exchange Commission upon its request.
* Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.
 
 INTEGRATED SURGICAL SYSTEMS, INC.  
   
    
 By: /s/ Gary A. Schuman  
 Gary A. Schuman, Chief Financial Officer  
 
Dated:  May 16, 2011
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Exhibit 10.1
 

CLEARSIGN COMBUSTION CORPORATION
 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
 

This Subscription Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into by and between ClearSign Combustion Corporation, a Washington corporation (the
"Company"), and Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Purchaser").
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and other agreements contained in this Agreement the Company and the Purchaser
hereby agree as follows:
 

1.             Purchase of Common Stock.
 

(a)           Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Purchaser hereby subscribes for the number of shares of the Company’s
Common Stock (as defined below) set forth in Section 5(b) (the "Shares") at a purchase price of $2.75 per Share (such price per share, the "Purchase Price,"
and the total amount to be paid for the Shares, the "Subscription Amount").  Fractional shares of Common Stock will not be issued, and the number of shares
of Common Stock to be issued in respect of a given Subscription Amount will be reduced to the nearest whole share.  The purchase and sale of the Initial
Shares (as defined below) and the Additional Shares (as defined below) shall sometimes be referred to herein as the “Offering.”
 

(b)           The Company is initially offering a total of 727,273 shares of Common Stock (the “Initial Shares”), for aggregate proceeds of
$2,000,000.75.  The Purchaser is owned in part by Christopher Marlett and Robert Levande (the “Affiliated Purchaser Stockholders”) who are affiliated with
MDB Capital Group, LLC, a California limited liability company (the “Placement Agent”), which has been retained by the Company as its placement agent
for the Offering.  Christopher Marlett is the Chief Executive Officer and a director of the Purchaser and the Chief Executive Officer of the Placement Agent
and Robert Levande is the Secretary and a director of the Purchaser and a Senior Managing Director of Investing Banking of the Placement Agent.
 

(c)           The Purchaser agrees that in addition to the Initial Shares, the Company shall have the right to sell up to an additional 363,636
shares of Common Stock (the “Additional Shares”) to other persons; provided, however, that all such Additional Shares are sold on or before the Final
Closing Date.  All agreements to purchase the Securities in the Offering shall be pursuant to agreements with terms and conditions reasonably acceptable to
the Placement Agent.  The Initial Shares and the Additional Shares shall be sometimes referred to herein as the “Securities.”
 

2.             Closing.
 

(a)           On or prior to the applicable Closing Date (as defined below), Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered the following in
accordance with the subscription procedures described in Section 2(b) below:
 

(i)             a completed and duly executed copy of this Agreement and a spousal consent substantially in the form of Exhibit B,
attached hereto (the “Spousal Consent”);
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(ii)            a duly executed copy of the escrow agreement, substantially in the form of Exhibit C, attached hereto (the “Escrow
Agreement”); and
 

(iii)           an amount equal to the Subscription Amount, in immediately available funds in the form of (X) a certified or cashier’s
check payable to the order of “Richardson & Patel LLP Client Trust Account f/b/o ClearSign Combustion Corporation” or (Y) a wire transfer of immediately
available funds to the Escrow Holder (as defined below), in accordance with the Escrow Holder’s written instructions.
 

(b)           The Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered the closing deliveries described above to Richardson & Patel LLP (the
“Escrow Holder”) at the following address:
 

Douglas Gold, Chief Financial Officer
c/o Richardson & Patel LLP

10900 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 500
Los Angeles, California 90024

 
(c)           This Agreement sets forth various representations, warranties, covenants and agreements of the Company and the Purchaser, as

the case may be, all of which shall be deemed made, and shall be effective without further action by the Company and the Purchaser, immediately upon the
Company’s acceptance of the Purchaser’s subscription and shall thereupon be binding upon the Company and the Purchaser.  Acceptance shall be evidenced
only be execution of this Agreement by the Company on its signature page attached hereto and the Company shall have no obligation hereunder to the
Purchaser until the Company shall have delivered to the Purchaser a fully executed copy of this Agreement.  Upon acceptance of the Purchaser's subscription,
the Company shall deliver to Purchaser, a certificate representing the Shares (which shall be issued in the name described in Section 5(b)) on the applicable
Closing Date.
 

(d)           The initial closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities shall be consummated on a date to be determined by the Company,
which shall be from April 13, 2011 to April 30, 2011 (the “Initial Closing Date”); provided, however, that the Company reserves the right to extend the
Offering, with the written approval of the Purchaser, for up to an additional 60 days beyond the Initial Closing Date (the “Final Closing Date” and together
with the Initial Closing Date, the “Closing Dates”).  If the Company elects to extend the Offering, so long as it has sold Initial Shares having a value of
$1,000,000 to Accredited Investors other than the Purchaser, it shall cause all funds held by the Escrow Holder to be delivered to it on the Initial Closing
Date.  The Company shall cause any additional funds received from additional subscriptions accepted following the Initial Closing Date to be delivered to the
Company on the Final Closing Date.
 

3.             Company Representations and Warranties.  The Company hereby represents and warrants that, as of the Closing Date applicable to the
Purchaser:
 

(a)           Organization and Business.  The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of
the State of Washington and has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its business as now conducted and as proposed to be conducted.  The
Company has no direct or indirect subsidiaries.  The Company is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in every
jurisdiction in which its ownership or use of property or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary except where the failure
to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect.  As used in this Agreement, the term “Material Adverse Effect” means any
material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets (including intangible assets), liabilities (actual or contingent), financial condition, or prospects of
the Company, if any, taken as a whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the other Transaction Documents (as defined below).  Information
about the Company’s business is included on Exhibit A to this Agreement (the “Company Information”).
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(b)           Capitalization.
 

(i)           The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 52,000,000 shares of which, 2,000,000 shares are Preferred
Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Preferred Stock”), none of which are issued and outstanding; and 50,000,000 shares are Common Stock, par value
$0.0001 per share (the "Common Stock"), of which 2,307,821 shares are issued and outstanding and 500,000 shares are reserved for issuance in accordance
with the terms of the ClearSign Combustion Corporation 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) (under which there are no stock options to purchase shares
of Common Stock granted and outstanding).  A list of the Common Stock held by the Company’s officers, directors, 5% shareholders, and all other holders of
capital stock of the Company (without taking into consideration the shares of Common Stock issued in connection with the Offering ), is set forth on
Schedule 3(b)(i) to this Agreement, and there is no other outstanding capital stock of the Company.  Schedule 3(b)(i) to this Agreement also sets forth the
outstanding capital stock of the Company after giving effect to the closing/s of the Offering (assuming all Securities are fully subscribed), on a fully-diluted
basis.
 

(ii)           Except as set forth on Schedule 3(b)(ii) to this Agreement, all of such outstanding shares of Common Stock have been
issued in compliance with all applicable federal and state securities laws and are duly authorized and have been validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable.  All Securities have been duly reserved for future issuance.
 

(iii)           No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to preemptive rights or any other similar rights of anyone or any
mortgage, lien, title claim, assignment, encumbrance, security interest, adverse claim, contract of sale, restriction on use or transfer (other than restrictions on
transfer under applicable state and federal securities laws or "blue sky" or other similar laws (collectively, the “Securities Laws”)) or other defect of title of
any kind (each, a “Lien”) imposed through the actions or failure to act of the Company.  Except as disclosed in Schedule 3(b)(iii) to this Agreement: (i) there
are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first refusal, agreements, understandings, claims or other commitments
or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights convertible into or exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of the Company, or
arrangements by which the Company is or may become bound to issue additional shares of capital stock of the Company, (ii) there are no agreements or
arrangements under which the Company is obligated to register the sale of any of its or their securities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”) and (iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any security issued by the Company (or in any agreement
providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the issuance of the Securities.
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(c)           Authorization; Enforceability.  All corporate action on the part of the Company, its officers, directors and shareholders necessary
for the authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents, the performance of all obligations of the Company under the Transaction
Documents, and the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the Securities has been taken, and each Transaction Document constitutes a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except to the extent limited by applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights and general principles of equity that
restrict the availability of equitable or legal remedies.
 

(d)           Valid Issuance.  The Shares being acquired by the Purchaser hereunder, when issued, sold and delivered in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement for the consideration expressed herein, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid, and nonassessable, and will be free of Liens other
than restrictions on transfer under this Agreement.
 

(e)           Litigation.  There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the Company's knowledge, currently threatened
against the Company.  The Company is not a party or subject to the provisions of any order, writ, injunction, judgment or decree of any court or government
agency or instrumentality.  There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation by the Company currently pending or that the Company intends to initiate.
 

(f)            No Conflict.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, and the other agreements
entered into by the Company in connection with the Offering (the “Transaction Documents”) and the consummation by the Company of the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby will not: (i) conflict with or result in a violation of any provision of the charter or by-laws of the Company or (ii) violate or
conflict with, or result in a breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture, patent, patent license or instrument to
which the Company is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws
and regulations and regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the Company or by
which any property or asset of the Company is bound or affected.  The Company is not in violation of its charter, bylaws, or other organizational
documents.  The Company is not in default (and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both could put the Company in default) under,
and the Company has not taken any action or failed to take any action that would give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or
cancellation of, any Material Agreement (as defined below).  The business of the Company is not being conducted in violation of any law, rule, ordinance or
regulation of any governmental entity, except for possible violations which would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse
Effect.  Except for filings pursuant to Regulation D of the Securities Act, and applicable state securities laws, which have been made or will be made by the
Company in the required time thereunder, the Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization or order of, or make any filing or registration
with, any court, governmental agency, regulatory agency, self regulatory organization or stock market or any third party in order for it to execute, deliver or
perform any of its obligations under this Agreement or any Transaction Document in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof or to issue and sell the
Securities in accordance with the terms hereof.
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(g)           Intellectual Property.  Other than the listing of 30 inventions of the Company whose patent applications have yet to be filed (the
“Confidential IP”), Schedule 3(g) to this Agreement sets forth a complete and accurate listing of all of the Company’s patents, patent applications, provisional
patents, trademarks, service marks, trade names, trademark registrations, service mark registrations, copyrights, licenses, formulae, mask works, customer
lists, internet domain names, know-how and other intellectual property, including trade secrets and other unpatented and/or unpatentable proprietary or
confidential information, systems, procedures or registrations or applications relating to the same (collectively, including the Confidential IP, the “Intellectual
Property”).  At the Purchaser’s request the Company shall make available to the Purchaser prior to the applicable Closing Date the Confidential IP; provided,
that, the Purchaser execute and deliver a non-disclosure agreement relating to the Confidential IP that is reasonably acceptable to the Company.  The
Company owns valid title, free and clear of any Liens, or possesses the requisite valid and current licenses or rights, free and clear of any Liens, to use all
Intellectual Property in connection with the conduct its business as now operated, and to the best of the Company’s knowledge, as presently contemplated to
be operated in the future.  There is no claim or action by any person pertaining to, or proceeding pending, or to the Company’s knowledge threatened, which
challenges the right of the Company  with respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated, and to the
Company’s knowledge, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future.  To the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s current and intended
products, services and processes do not infringe on any Intellectual Property or other rights held by any person, and the Company is unaware of any facts or
circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.  The Company has not received any notice of infringement of, or conflict with, the asserted
rights of others with respect to the Intellectual Property.  It will not be necessary to use any inventions of any of its employees or consultants (or persons it
currently intends to hire) made prior to their employment by the Company.  Each employee and consultant of the Company has assigned to the Company all
intellectual property rights he or she owns that are related to the Company’s business as now conducted and as presently proposed to be conducted.
 

(h)           Proprietary Information Agreements.  The Company has taken all reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy,
confidentiality and value of all trade secrets, know-how, inventions, designs, processes and technical data required to conduct its business (“Proprietary
Information”).  Each current and former employee of the Company has executed an agreement assigning all Proprietary Information made or reduced to
practice by such employee in the course of providing services to the Company and relating to the Company’s business or business plans (the “Proprietary
Information Agreement”).  Except as set forth on Schedule 3(h) to this Agreement (the “Excluded Inventions”), no such employee has excluded works or
inventions made prior to his or her employment with the Company from his or her assignment of inventions pursuant to such employee’s Proprietary
Information Agreement .  It is not nor will it be necessary for the Company to use any Excluded Inventions, except for Excluded Inventions that have been
assigned to the Company.  Each consultant to the Company that has had access to Intellectual Property material to the Company’s business and operations has
entered into a confidentiality and invention assignment agreement.  No officer, employee or consultant of the Company is in violation of such confidential
information and invention assignment agreement or any prior employee contract or proprietary information agreement with any other corporation or third
party.
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(i)            Material Agreements.  Except as disclosed on Schedule 3(i) to this Agreement (each contract, agreement, commitment or
understanding disclosed on Schedule 3(i) being hereinafter referred to as a "Material Agreement") or as contemplated by this Agreement or any Transaction
Document, there are no agreements, understandings, commitments, instruments, contracts, employment agreements, proposed transactions or judgments to
which the Company is a party or by which it is bound which may involve obligations (contingent or otherwise), or a related series of obligations (contingent
or otherwise), of or to, or payments, or a related series of payments, by or to the Company in excess of $10,000 in any one year.  All Material Agreements are
in full force and effect and constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company, and to the Company's knowledge, the other parties thereto, and are
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms.  Neither the Company nor any person is in default under the terms of any Material Agreement, and no
circumstance exists that would, with the giving of notice or the passage of time, constitute a default under any Material Agreement.
 

(j)            Management.  As of the date of this Agreement, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) consists of two members,
namely, Richard Rutkowski and David Goodson, and the Company has the following officers:
 

Richard Rutkowski Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
David Goodson Chief Science Officer
Geoffrey Osler Chief Marketing Officer, Secretary

 
The compensation of each officer as of the date of this Agreement is included on Schedule 3(j) of this Agreement.  In addition, information about

each officer, which to the knowledge of the Company is true and correct, is included on Schedule 3(j) of this Agreement.    The officers do not have formal
employment agreements and serve on an at-will basis.  Prior to an offering of the Common Stock to the public, the Company intends to enter into a formal
employment agreement with the Chief Executive Officer.
 

(k)           Financial Statements and Budget.  A true and complete copy of (A) an unaudited balance sheet of the Company as of December
31, 2010 (the “Balance Sheet”), (B) an unaudited income statement  of the Company for the 9 month period ended December 31, 2008, and the 12 month
periods ended December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010 (the “Income Statements” and collectively with the Balance Sheet, the “Financial Statements”) and
(C) an operating budget for the Company for fiscal year 2011 (the “Budget”), are attached as Schedule 3(k) to this Agreement.  The Financial Statements
fairly present the financial condition and operating results of the Company as of the dates, and for the periods, indicated therein, subject to normal year-end
audit adjustments (which are not expected to be material either individually or in the aggregate).  Except as set forth in the Financial Statements, the Company
has no material liabilities or obligations, contingent or otherwise, other than liabilities incurred in connection with the consummation of the transactions
contemplated under the Offering, an estimate of which is set forth on Schedule 3(k), and those incurred in the ordinary course of business subsequent to
December 31, 2010.
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(l)            Financial Information and Projections.  Any financial estimates and projections in the Company Information and/or Budget have
been prepared by management of the Company and are the most current financial estimates and projections available by the Company.  Although the
Company does not warrant that the results contained in such projections will be achieved, to the best of the Company’s knowledge and belief, such
projections are reasonable estimations of future financial performance of the Company and its expected financial position, results of operations, and cash
flows for the projection period (subject to the uncertainty and approximation inherent in any projection).  At the time they were made, all of the material
assumptions upon which the projections are based were, to the best of the Company’s knowledge and belief, reasonable and appropriate.  Nothing in this
Section 3(l) is intended to modify or amend in any way the representations and warranties of Purchaser in Section 4.
 

(m)          Tax Matters.  Except as set forth on Schedule 3(m) to this Agreement, the Company has made or filed all federal, state and foreign
income and all other tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject and has paid all taxes and other governmental
assessments and charges, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set aside
on its books provisions reasonably adequate for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations
apply.  All such tax returns and reports filed on behalf of the Company were complete and correct and were prepared in good faith without willful
misrepresentation.  There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the
Company know of no basis for any such claim.  The Company has not executed a waiver with respect to the statute of limitations relating to the assessment or
collection of any foreign, federal, state or local tax.  The Company has not received notice that any of its tax returns is presently being audited by any taxing
authority.
 

(n)           Certain Transactions.  Except as set forth on Schedule 3(n) to this Agreement, there are no loans, leases, royalty agreements or
other transactions between: (i) the Company or any of its respective customers or suppliers, and (ii) any officer, employee, consultant or director of the
Company or any person owning five percent (5%) or more of the ownership interests of the Company or any member of the immediate family of such officer,
employee, consultant, director, stockholder or owner or any corporation or other entity controlled by such officer, employee, consultant, director, stockholder
or owner, or a member of the immediate family of such officer, employee, consultant, director, stockholder or owner.
 

(o)           No General Solicitation. Neither the Company nor any person participating on the Company’s behalf in the transactions
contemplated hereby has conducted any “general solicitation,” as such term is defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act, with respect to
any securities offered in the Offering.
 

(p)           No Integrated Offering.  Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has directly or
indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any security under circumstances that would require registration under the
Securities Act of the issuance of the Securities.  The issuance of the Securities will not be integrated (as defined in Rule 502 of the Securities Act) with any
other issuance of the Company’s securities (past, current or future) that would require registration under the Securities Act of the issuance of the Securities.
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(q)           No Brokers.  The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any person for brokerage commissions,
transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, other than to the Placement Agent, whose fee is
described in Section 4(g).
 

(r)            Offering.  Subject to the accuracy of the Purchaser’s representations and warranties in Section 4 of this Agreement, and the
accuracy of other purchasers’ representations and warranties in their respective subscription agreements, the offer, sale and issuance of the Securities in the
Offering, constitute transactions exempt from the registration requirements of Section 5 of the Securities Act and from the registration or qualification
requirements of applicable state securities laws, and neither the Company nor any authorized agent acting on its behalf will take any action hereafter that
would cause the loss of such exemption.
 

4.             Purchaser Acknowledgements and Representations.  In connection with the purchase of the Shares, Purchaser represents and warrants as of
the Closing Date applicable to the Purchaser and/or acknowledges, to the Company, the following:
 

(a)           Acceptance.  The Company may accept or reject this Agreement and the number of Shares subscribed for hereunder, in whole or
in part, in its sole and absolute discretion.  The Company has no obligation to issue any of the Shares to any person who is a resident of a jurisdiction in which
the issuance of the Shares would constitute a violation of the Securities Laws.
 

(b)           Irrevocability.  This Agreement is and shall be irrevocable, except that the Purchaser shall have no obligations hereunder to the
extent that this Agreement is rejected by the Company.
 

(c)           Binding.  This Agreement and the rights, powers and duties set forth herein shall be binding upon the Purchaser, the Purchaser's
heirs, estate, legal representatives, successors and assigns and shall inure to the benefit of the Company, its successors and assigns.
 

(d)           No Governmental Review.  No federal or state agency has made any finding or determination as to the fairness of the Offering for
investment, or any recommendation or endorsement of the Shares.
 

(e)           Voting Power.  The Shares issued to the Purchaser are entitled to one vote per share.  The Shares do not entitle the Purchaser to
preemptive rights.
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(f)            Professional Advice; Investment Experience.  The Company has made available to the Purchaser, or to the Purchaser's attorney,
accountant or representative, all documents that the Purchaser has requested, and the Purchaser has requested all documents and other information that the
Purchaser has deemed necessary to consider respecting an investment in the Company.  The Company has provided answers to all questions concerning the
Offering and an investment in the Company.  The Purchaser has carefully considered and has, to the extent the Purchaser believes necessary, discussed with
the Purchaser's professional technical, legal, tax and financial advisers and his/her/its representative (if any) the suitability of an investment in the Company
for the Purchaser's particular tax and financial situation.  All information the Purchaser has provided to the Company concerning the Purchaser and the
Purchaser's financial position is, to Purchaser’s knowledge, correct and complete as of the date set forth below, and if there should be any material adverse
change in such information prior to the acceptance of this Agreement by the Company, the Purchaser will immediately provide such information to the
Company.  The Purchaser has such knowledge, skill, and experience in technical, business, financial, and investment matters so that he/she/it is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the Shares.  To the extent necessary, the Purchaser has retained, at his/her/its own expense, and relied upon,
appropriate professional advice regarding the technical, investment, tax, and legal merits and consequences of this Agreement and owning the Shares.  The
Purchaser acknowledges and understands that the proceeds from the sale of the Shares will be used as described in Section 6(a).
 

(g)           Brokers and Finders; Placement Agent Services.  Other than the Placement Agent with respect to the Company, no person will
have, as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, any valid right, interest or claim against or upon the Company or the Purchaser for any
commission, fee or other compensation pursuant to any agreement, arrangement or understanding entered into by or on behalf of the Purchaser.  The
Purchaser acknowledges that it is purchasing the Shares directly from the Company and not from the Placement Agent.  The Purchaser further acknowledges
and understands that in consideration for its services as the placement agent for the Offering, the Placement Agent shall receive (the “Placement Agent Fee”)
(i) shares of Common Stock and a warrant (collectively, the “Stock Fee”) and (ii) cash in the amount to offset expenses of the Placement Agent incurred in
connection with the Offering.  The Stock Fee will be in the form of (x) shares of Common Stock equal to 10% of the gross proceeds from sales of Common
Stock made in the Offering divided by the Purchase Price (the “Placement Agent Common Stock”) and (y) a 5-year warrant to purchase 10% of the shares of
Common Stock sold in the Offering at an exercise price equal to the Purchase Price (the “Placement Agent Warrant”).  The Placement Agent has also been
retained by the Company as an intellectual property and business strategy consultant (such services, the “Consulting Services).  The fee for the Consulting
Services is 363,636 shares of Common Stock (the “Consulting Shares,” and together with the Stock Fee, the “Placement Agent Shares”), all of which have
been earned and shall be issued prior to or on the First Closing Date (as defined below).
 

(h)           Investment Purpose.  Purchaser is purchasing the Shares for investment for his, her or its own account only and not with a view to,
or for resale in connection with, any "distribution" thereof within the meaning of the Securities Act in violation of such act.  Purchaser further represents that
he/she/it does not presently have any contract, undertaking, agreement or arrangement with any person to sell, transfer or grant participations to such person
or to any third person, with respect to any of the Shares.  If the Purchaser is an entity, the Purchaser represents that it has not been formed for the specific
purpose of acquiring the Shares.  Purchaser acknowledges that an investment in the Shares is a high-risk, speculative investment.
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(i)            Reliance on Exemptions.  Purchaser understands that the Shares are being offered and sold to it in reliance upon specific
exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy
of, and the Purchaser’s compliance with, the representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of Purchaser set forth herein in
order to determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Purchaser to acquire the Shares.
 

(j)            Restricted Securities.  Purchaser understands that the Shares are "restricted securities" under applicable Securities Laws and that,
pursuant to these laws, Purchaser must hold the Shares indefinitely unless they are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and qualified by
state authorities, or an exemption from such registration and qualification requirements is available.  Purchaser acknowledges that the Company has no
obligation to register or qualify the Shares for resale, except as provided in Section 9 herein.  Purchaser further acknowledges that if an exemption from
registration or qualification is available, it may be conditioned on various requirements including, but not limited to, the time and manner of sale, the holding
period for the Shares, and requirements relating to the Company which are outside of the Purchaser's control, and which the Company is under no obligation
and may not be able to satisfy.
 

(k)           Professional Advice.  The Company has not received from its legal counsel, accountants or professional advisors any independent
valuation of the Company or any of its equity securities, or any opinion as to the fairness of the terms of the Offering or the adequacy of disclosure of
materials pertaining to the Company or the Offering.
 

(l)            Risk of Loss.  The Purchaser has adequate net worth and means of providing for his/her/its current needs and personal
contingencies to sustain a complete loss of the investment in the Company at the time of investment, and the Purchaser has no need for liquidity in the
investment in the Shares.  The Purchaser understands that an investment in the Shares is highly risky and that he/she/it could suffer a complete loss of
his/her/its investment.
 

(m)           Information.  The Purchaser understands that any plans, estimates and projections, provided by or on behalf of the Company,
involve significant elements of subjective judgment and analysis that may or may not be correct; that there can be no assurance that such plans, projections or
goals will be attained; and that any such plans, projections and estimates should not be relied upon as a promise or representation of the future performance of
the Company.  The Purchaser acknowledges that the Company, the Placement Agent nor anyone acting on the Company’s behalf makes any representation or
warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or correctness of any such plans, estimates and projections, and there are no assurances that such plans,
estimates and projections will be achieved.  The Purchaser understands that the Company’s technology is new and untested and has not been commercialized
and that there is no guarantee that the technology will be successfully commercialized.  The Purchaser understands that, because the technology is new and
has not been commercialized, all the risks associated with the technology are not now known.  Before investing in the Offering, the Purchaser has been given
the opportunity to ask questions of the Company about the technology and the Company’s business and the Purchaser has received answers to those
questions.
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(n)           Authorization; Enforcement.  Each Transaction Document to which a Purchaser is a party: (i) has been duly and validly
authorized, (ii) has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Purchaser, and (iii) will constitute, upon execution and delivery by the Purchaser thereof
and the Company, the valid and binding agreements of the Purchaser enforceable in accordance with their terms, except to the extent limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights and general principles of
equity that restrict the availability of equitable or legal remedies.
 

(o)           Residency.  If the Purchaser is an individual, then Purchaser resides in the state or province identified in the address of such
Purchaser set forth in Section 5; if the Purchaser is a partnership, corporation, limited liability company or other entity, then the office or offices of the
Purchaser in which its principal place of business is identified in the address or addresses of the Purchaser set forth in Section 5.
 

(p)           Communication of Offer. The Purchaser was contacted by either the Company or the Placement Agent with respect to a potential
investment in the Shares.  The Purchaser is not purchasing the Shares as a result of any “general solicitation” or “general advertising,” as such terms are
defined in Regulation D of the Securities Act, which includes, but is not limited to, any advertisement, article, notice or other communication regarding the
Shares published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or on the internet or broadcast over television, radio or the internet or presented at any seminar
or any other general solicitation or general advertisement.
 

(q)           No Conflicts.  The execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser of this Agreement and the consummation by the
Purchaser of the transactions contemplated hereby will not (i) result in a violation of the organizational documents of the Purchaser (if the Purchaser is an
entity), (ii) conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, or give to others any
rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which the Purchaser is a party, or (iii) result in a
violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws) applicable to the Purchaser.
 

(r)           Organization.  If the Purchaser is an entity, it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
jurisdiction of its organization with the requisite corporate or partnership power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions contemplated
by the applicable Transaction Documents and otherwise to carry out its obligations hereunder and thereunder.  If the Purchaser is an entity, the execution,
delivery and performance by the Purchaser of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate or, if the
Purchaser is not a corporation, such partnership, limited liability company or other applicable like action, on the part of the Purchaser.
 

(s)           No Other Representations.  Other than the representations and warranties contained herein, such Purchaser has not received and is
not relying on any representation, warranties or assurances as to the Company, its business or its prospects from the Company or any other person or entity.
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(t)            Legal Representation.  Purchaser hereby acknowledges that: (a) the Purchaser and the Placement Agent have retained Manatt,
Phelps & Phillips, LLP (“Manatt”) as their respective legal counsel in connection with this Agreement, the Offering, and the transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby and that the Company shall be responsible for paying the fees and expenses of Manatt in connection therewith (up to $30,000), (b) the
interests of the Purchaser and Placement Agent may not necessarily coincide with the interests of the other or any other investor in the Offering, (c) Manatt or
its affiliates (the “Manatt Investor”) may invest in the Offering, and (d) Manatt does not represent any investor in the Offering other than the Purchaser and
the Manatt Investor.
 

(u)           Execution and Delivery.  The Company and each Purchaser agree that this Agreement, the Escrow Agreement, and agreements
related thereto by the parties may be executed and delivered by electronic means or in electronic format via electronic mail (in .pdf or similar format) or
facsimile, and each document or agreement executed in such manner shall be treated for all purposes as originally executed and delivered agreements and
instruments.
 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank; Agreement continues on following page]
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                5.           Purchaser Information.
 

(a)           Status as an Accredited Investor.  By initialing the appropriate space(s) below, the Purchaser represents and warrants that he/she/it
is an "Accredited Investor" within the meaning of Regulation D of the Securities Act.
 
o  a. A director, executive officer or general partner of Company.

o  b. A natural person whose individual net worth or joint net worth with spouse at time of purchase exceeds $1,000,000.  (In calculation of net worth,
you may include equity in personal property and real estate (excluding your principal residence), cash, short term investments, stocks and
securities.  Equity in personal property and real estate should be based on the fair market value of such property less debt secured by such
property.)

o  c. A natural person who had an individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of two most recent years or joint income with spouse in excess of
$300,000 in each of those years and has a reasonable expectation of reaching same level of income in current year.

o  d. A corporation, limited liability company, partnership, tax-exempt organization (under Section 501(c)(3) of Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended) or Massachusetts or similar business trust (i) not formed for specific purpose of acquiring Common Stock and (ii) having total assets in
excess of $5,000,000.

o  e. An entity which falls within one of following categories of institutional accredited investors, set forth in 501(a) of Regulation D under Securities
Act [if you have marked this category, also mark which of following items describes you:]

 o  1. A bank as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of Securities Act, or any savings and loan association or other institution as defined in Section
3(a)(5)(A) of Securities Act whether acting in its individual or a fiduciary capacity.

 o  2. A broker/dealer registered pursuant to Section 15 of Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

 o  3. An insurance company as defined in Section 2(13) of Securities Act.

 o  4. An investment company registered under Investment Company Act of 1940 or a business development company as defined in Section
2(a)(48) of that act.

 o  5. A Small Business Investment Company licensed by U.S. Small Business Administration under Section 301(c) or (d) of Small
Business Investment Act of 1958.

 o  6. Any plan established and maintained by a state, its political subdivisions, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or its political
subdivisions for benefit of its employees, if such plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000.

 o  7. Any private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

 o  8. An employee benefit plan within meaning of Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, if investment decision is made by a
plan fiduciary, as defined in Section 3(21) of such act, which is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company or
registered investment adviser, or if employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000 or, if a self-directed plan, with
investment decisions made solely by persons that are accredited investors.

 o  9. A trust, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for specific purpose of acquiring Class A Common Stock offered, whose
purchase is directed by sophisticated person as described in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) of Regulation D.

o  f. An entity in which all equity owners are accredited investors as described above.

 
PURCHASER MUST INDICATE THE APPLICABLE CATEGORY OR CATEGORIES BY INITIALING EACH APPLICABLE SPACE ABOVE;
IF JOINT INVESTORS, BOTH PARTIES MUST INITIAL.
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(b)           Subscription Information.  Please complete the following information.
 

Shares:   363,636 
     
SubscriptionAmount (@ $2.75 per share):  $ 1,000,000 

 
 Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.
 Name Purchaser would like to appear on Company's Ledger of Common Stock
 
Indicate ownership as:
 
o (a) Individual
o (b) Community Property
o (c) Joint Tenants with Right of Survivorship           ) All parties
o (d) Tenants in Common                                                ) must sign
o (e) Corporate
o (f) Partnership
o (g) Trust
 
401 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 1020    
Address of Residence  Address for Sending Notices  
(or Business, if not an individual)     (if different)  
    
Santa Monica, CA  90401    
City, State and Zip Code     City, State and Zip Code  
    
310-526-5006    
Telephone Number   Telephone Number  

 
The Purchaser is a resident of, or (in the case of an entity) is organized under the laws of, the State of Delaware.
 
Purchaser's Taxpayer ID or Social Security No.: 68-0232575  
 
Citizen of:

 
Delaware

 

 
E-mail Address:

  

 
[remainder of page intentionally left blank; Agreement continues on following page]

 
 

14



 
 

6.             Covenants.  In addition to the other agreements and covenants set forth herein, the applicable parties hereto covenant as follows:
 

(a)           Use of Proceeds; Conversion of Certain Unpaid Compensation.  The Company will use the net proceeds from the Offering for
working capital and general corporate purposes, including for the purpose of retiring no more than $178,400 in certain current liabilities (the “Permitted
Liability Payment”), which are listed on Schedule 6(a) to this Agreement.  A more detailed description of the way in which the Company will use the
proceeds from the Offering is included on Schedule 6(a) of this Agreement.  The Company shall cause any accrued but unpaid compensation as of the First
Closing Date (as defined below) that is not paid out by the Permitted Liability Payment to be converted to shares of Common Stock at a price equal to the
Purchase Price.
 

(b)           Agreement Regarding New Debt.  The Company agrees that during the period of time from the date the first Security is sold (the
“First Closing Date”) and the date the registration statement filed by the Company pursuant to Section 9(a) becomes effective (such date, the “End Date”), it
will not incur any additional significant debt without the prior written approval of the Placement Agent, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld.  For purposes of this Section 6(b), “significant debt” is defined as a single occurrence of borrowing outside the normal course of the Company’s
business that is in excess of $25,000.
 

(c)           Other Restrictions and Obligations.  The Company agrees that for the period of time from the First Closing Date until the End
Date, it will:
 

(i)             not issue any shares of Preferred Stock or any securities or instruments convertible into Preferred Stock;
 

(ii)            not issue any options or rights to purchase stock of the Company to any officer, director, employee, or consultant of the
Company unless such options or rights vest equally over a period of thirty-six (36) months or longer; and
 

(iii)           require their officers, directors, employees and consultants to execute and deliver an Employee Proprietary Information
and Inventions Agreement substantially in a form of Exhibit E attached hereto.
 

(d)           Board of Directors.  The Company agrees that immediately upon the registration of any capital stock of the Company (or its
successor) under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), the Company shall cause (i) the number of members of
the Board to be increased  to five and (ii) the appointment of three independent directors who are reasonably acceptable to the Placement Agent.
 
Pursuant to Section 11(b) of this Agreement, the Placement Agent may, in its sole discretion, waive any of the foregoing covenants of the Company in this
Section 6, on behalf of the Purchaser.
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7.             Market Stand-Off; Purchaser Distribution.
 

(a)           Lock-Up.  In connection with the initial underwritten public offering by the Company of its equity securities pursuant to an
effective registration statement filed under the Securities Act, Purchaser shall not, without the prior written consent of the Company’s managing underwriter,
(i) lend, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to
purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of Common Stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for Common Stock (whether such shares or any such securities are then owned by the Purchaser or are thereafter acquired), or (ii) enter into any
swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of Common Stock or any securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Common Stock, whether any such transaction described in clause (i) or (ii) above is to be settled by
delivery of stock or such other securities, in cash or otherwise.  Such restriction (the "Market Stand-Off") shall be in effect for such period of time following
the date of the final prospectus for the offering as may be requested by the Company or such underwriters.  In no event, however, shall such period exceed
180 days or such longer period requested by the underwriters to comply with regulatory restrictions on the publication of research reports (including, without
limitation, NASD 2711).  In the event of the declaration of a stock dividend, a spin-off, a stock split, an adjustment in conversion ratio, a recapitalization or a
similar transaction affecting the Company's outstanding securities without receipt of consideration, any new, substituted or additional securities that are by
reason of such transaction distributed with respect to any Company Common Stock subject to the Market Stand-Off, or into which such Company Common
Stock thereby becomes convertible, shall immediately be subject to the Market Stand-Off.  To enforce the Market Stand-Off, the Company may impose stop-
transfer instructions with respect to the Shares until the end of the applicable stand-off period.  This Section 7(a) shall not apply to Shares registered in the
public offering under the Securities Act, and the Purchaser shall be subject to this Section 7(a) only if the directors and officers of the Company are subject to
similar arrangements.
 

(b)           Purchaser Distribution.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Purchaser is a public company with a significant number
of stockholders, and that it may, so long as it complies with applicable securities laws, distribute any and all Shares to such stockholders (the “Purchaser
Stockholders”) at any time, including by way of a rights offering or other distribution, and the Company will reasonably cooperate with any such distribution
(including by taking reasonable actions in coordination with the Purchaser to structure such distribution, and the Company’s concurrent offering of securities
in an appropriate manner to comply with applicable securities laws).
 

(c)           Inapplicability of Lock-Up Upon Distribution.  The Company acknowledges and agrees that  to the extent the Purchaser
distributes the Shares to the Purchaser Stockholders, then, (i) the Affiliated Purchaser Stockholders shall be subject to the lock-up obligation described in
Section 7(a), and (ii) all other Purchaser Stockholders shall not be subject to the lock-up obligation described in Section 7(a).
 

(d)           Shares.  As used in this Section 7 and in Section 9, the term "Shares" refers to the purchased Shares, all securities received in
replacement of or in connection with the Shares pursuant to stock dividends or splits, all securities received in replacement of the Shares in a recapitalization,
merger, reorganization, exchange or the like, and all new, substituted or additional securities or other properties to which Purchaser is entitled by reason of
Purchaser's ownership of the Shares.
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8.             Restrictive Legends and Stop-Transfer Orders.
 

(a)           Legends.  The certificate or certificates representing the Shares shall bear the following legends (as well as any legends required
by applicable state corporate law and the Securities Laws):
 
 (i) THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE

SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT AND NOT WITH
A VIEW TO, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THE SALE OR DISTRIBUTION THEREOF.  NO SUCH SALE OR
DISTRIBUTION MAY BE EFFECTED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATED
THERETO OR AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (OR OTHER EVIDENCE) IN A FORM SATISFACTORY TO THE
COMPANY THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933.

 
 (ii) THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE TRANSFERRED ONLY IN ACCORDANCE

WITH THE TERMS OF A SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE
SHAREHOLDER DATED FEBRUARY __, 2011, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE WITH THE SECRETARY OF
THE COMPANY.

 
 (iii) Any legend required to be placed thereon by any appropriate securities commissioner.
 

(b)           Stop-Transfer Notices.  Purchaser agrees that, to ensure compliance with the restrictions referred to herein, the Company may
issue appropriate "stop transfer" instructions to its transfer agent, if any, and that, if the Company transfers its own securities, it may make appropriate
notations to the same effect in its own records.
 

(c)           Refusal to Transfer.  The Company shall not be required (i) to transfer on its books any Shares that have been sold or otherwise
transferred in violation of any of the provisions of this Agreement or (ii) to treat as owner of such Shares or to accord the right to vote or pay dividends to any
purchaser or other transferee to whom such Shares shall have been so transferred.
 

(d)           Removal of Legend.  The Shares held by Purchaser will no longer be subject to the legend referred to in Section 8(a)(ii) following
the expiration or termination of the lock-up provisions of Section 7 (and of any agreement entered pursuant to Section 7).  After such time, and upon
Purchaser's request, a new certificate or certificates representing the Shares shall be issued without the legend referred to in Section 8(a)(ii), and delivered to
Purchaser.
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9.             Public Company Status; Resale Registration; Piggyback Registration.
 

(a)           Public Company Status.  The Company will use reasonable best efforts to become a publicly traded and publicly reporting
company under both the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, including without limitation, it will use reasonable best efforts to file a registration statement
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on Form S-1 covering the registration of Common Stock of the Company (the “IPO S-1”) within 120
days after the First Closing Date, and shall cause such registration statement to be declared effective by the SEC within 180 days after the First Closing Date,
and the Company shall take all such other actions associated with being a publicly traded company, including, if the Company qualifies, or can reasonably
take appropriate actions to qualify (such determination to be made at the sole discretion of the Placement Agent), for listing on The NASDAQ Stock Market
(“NASDAQ”), filing an application for listing the Common Stock on NASDAQ, or such other exchange as agreed to by the Company and the Placement
Agent.
 

(b)           Resale Registration.  The Company will use reasonable best efforts to file with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 (the
“Resale Registration Statement”) for the registration and the resale under Rule 415 of the Securities Act, of the Shares at the same time as it files the IPO S-1,
and shall cause the Resale Registration Statement to be declared effective by the SEC within 180 days after the First Closing Date.  The Company shall also
cause the Resale Registration Statement to continue to be effective and updated for all material information and developments by taking all actions necessary,
including filing with the SEC all necessary post-effective amendments to the Resale Registration Statement and/or “stickers” or prospectus supplements, as
required by law, rule or as reasonably requested by the Purchaser, until the earliest to occur of  (a) all Shares being sold by the Purchaser or, to the extent the
Purchaser has distributed the Shares to the Purchaser Stockholders, being sold by the Purchaser Stockholders or (b) such time as Rule 144 or another similar
exemption under the Securities Act is available for the sale of all Shares by the Purchaser or, to the extent the Purchaser has distributed the Shares to the
Purchaser Stockholders, by the Purchaser Stockholders, without volume or manner of sale restrictions during a three-month period without registration.  The
Resale Registration Statement shall at all times comply with all applicable securities laws, including those pertaining to accuracy of disclosure, and the
Company shall, at the Purchaser’s request, provide such indemnities as are customary for sellers under a Resale Registration Statement (and a piggy back
registration statement described below) in connection with the information provided by the Company, and the Purchaser shall likewise provide such
customary indemnities in connection with the information provided by the Purchaser specifically for inclusion in such Resale Registration Statement (and/or
piggy back registration statement, as described below).
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(c)           Piggyback Registration Rights.  The Company agrees that if, after the date hereof, the Board shall authorize the filing of a
registration statement under the Securities Act (other than a registration statement on Form S-8, Form S-4 or any other form that does not include
substantially the same information as would be required in a form for the general registration of securities) in connection with the proposed offer of any of its
securities by it or any corporation with which it may combine or merge subsequent to the Offering, the Company shall: (A) promptly notify the Purchaser that
such registration statement will be filed and that the Shares purchased pursuant to this Agreement, which were not included in the Resale Registration
Statement (or, if included in the Resale Registration Statement, Shares that continue to be restricted securities as a result of the Resale Registration Statement
not continuing to be effective) and are then held by the Purchaser (hereinafter the “Registrable Securities”) will be included in such registration statement at
such Purchaser’s request; (B) cause such registration statement to cover all of such Registrable Securities issued to such Purchaser for which such Purchaser
requests inclusion; (C) use reasonable best efforts to cause such registration statement to become effective as soon as practicable; and (D) take all other
reasonable action necessary under any Federal or state law or regulation of any governmental authority to permit all such Registrable Securities that have
been issued to such Purchaser to be sold or otherwise disposed of, and will maintain such compliance with each such Federal and state law and regulation of
any governmental authority for the period necessary for such Purchaser to promptly effect the proposed sale or other disposition, but no later than the date
that, assuming compliance with all of the requirements of Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act, the Purchaser would be entitled to sell the
Registrable Securities pursuant to Rule 144.  If the Purchaser desires to include in such registration statement all or any part of the Registrable Securities held
by him/her/it, he/she/it shall, within twenty (20) days after the above-described notice from the Company, so notify the Company in writing.  Such notice
shall state the intended method of disposition of the Registrable Securities by the Purchaser.  If the Purchaser decides not to include all of his/her/its
Registrable Securities in any registration statement thereafter filed by the Company, the Purchaser shall nevertheless continue to have the right to include any
Registrable Securities in any subsequent registration statement or registration statements as may be filed by the Company with respect to offerings of its
securities, all upon the terms and conditions set forth herein.
 

(d)           Underwriting Requirements.  In connection with any registration statement subject to Section 9(b) involving an underwritten
offering of shares of the Company’s capital stock, the Company shall not be required to include any of the Purchaser’s Registrable Securities in such
underwriting unless the Purchaser accepts the terms of the underwriting as agreed upon between the Company and its underwriters, and then only in such
quantity as the Placement Agent in its sole discretion determines will not jeopardize the success of the offering by the Company.  If the total number of
Securities and Placement Agent Shares to be included in such offering (the “Requested Securities”) exceeds the number of securities to be sold (other than by
the Company) that the Placement Agent in its reasonable discretion determine is compatible with the success of the offering, then the Company shall be
required to include in the offering only that number of such Requested Securities, which the Placement Agent in its sole discretion determines will not
jeopardize the success of the offering.  If the Placement Agent determine that less than all of the Requested Securities requested to be registered can be
included in such offering, then the securities to be registered that are included in such offering shall be allocated among the holders of the Securities and
Placement Agent Shares (collectively, the “Holders”) in proportion (as nearly as practicable to) the number of Requested Securities owned by each
Holder.  To facilitate the allocation of shares in accordance with the above provisions, the Company or the underwriters may round the number of shares
allocated to any Holder to the nearest 10 shares.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the number of Requested Securities included in the offering
be reduced below thirty percent (30%) of the total number of securities included in such offering, unless such offering is the initial public offering of the
Company, in which case the Holders may be excluded further if the Placement Agent makes the determination described above and no other shareholder’s
securities are included in such offering.  For purposes of the provision in this Section 9(c) concerning apportionment, for any Holder that is a partnership,
limited liability company, or corporation, the partners, members, retired partners, retired members, stockholders, and affiliates of such Holder, or the estates
and immediate family members of any such partners, retired partners, members, and retired members and any trusts for the benefit of any of the foregoing
persons, shall be deemed to be a single “Holder,” and any pro rata reduction with respect to such “Holder” shall be based upon the aggregate number of
Requested Securities owned by all persons included in such “Holder,” as defined in this sentence.
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(e)           Abandonment or Delay of Registration.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section 9, the Company may at any time
abandon or delay any registration commenced by the Company.  In the event of such an abandonment by the Company, the Company shall not be required to
continue registration of the Registrable Securities requested by the Purchaser for inclusion, the Purchaser shall retain the right to request inclusion of the
Registrable Securities as set forth above and the withdrawn registration shall not be deemed to be a registration request for the purposes of this Section 9.
 

(f)            Expenses.  The Holders shall be responsible for all underwriting discounts and selling commissions with respect to the
Purchaser’s Registrable Securities being sold.  The Company will pay all other expenses incurred by it associated with each registration, including, without
limitation, all filing and printing fees, the Company’s counsel and accounting fees and expenses, costs associated with clearing the Purchaser’s Registrable
Securities for sale under applicable Securities Laws, listing fees, and reasonable fees and disbursements of a single special counsel to the Holders having
securities being registered under such registration statement.
 

(g)           Qualification in States.  Prior to any public offering of Registrable Securities, the Company will use reasonable best efforts to
register or qualify or cooperate with the Purchaser and applicable counsel to the holders of securities being registered in connection with the registration or
qualification of the Registrable Securities for offer and sale under the securities or blue sky laws of such jurisdictions requested by the Purchaser as shall be
reasonably appropriate in the opinion of the Company and do any and all other commercially reasonable acts or things necessary or advisable to enable the
distribution in such jurisdictions of the Registrable Securities covered by the registration statement; provided, however, that the Company shall not be
required in connection therewith or as a condition thereto to (i) qualify to do business in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be required to qualify
but for this Section 9(f), (ii) subject itself to general taxation in any jurisdiction where it would not otherwise be so subject but for this Section 9(f), or (iii) file
a general consent to service of process in any such jurisdiction; and provided further that (notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary with
respect to the bearing of expenses) if any jurisdiction in which any of such Registrable Securities shall be qualified shall require that expenses incurred in
connection with the qualification therein of any such Registrable Securities be borne by the selling holders of securities to be registered, then the such selling
holders shall, to the extent required by such jurisdiction, pay their pro rata share of such qualification expenses.
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(h)           Effectiveness.
 

(i)           Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company shall use reasonable best efforts to have the
registration statement filed pursuant to this Section 9 declared effective.  The Company shall notify the Purchaser by facsimile or e-mail as promptly as
practicable after the registration statement is declared effective and shall simultaneously provide the Purchaser with copies of any related prospectus to be
used in connection with the sale or other disposition of the Registrable Securities covered thereby.
 

(ii)           The Company may delay the disclosure of material non-public information concerning the Company by suspending the
use of any prospectus included in any registration statement contemplated hereunder required to contain such information, the disclosure of which at the time
is not, in the good faith opinion of the Company, in the best interests of the Company (an “Allowed Delay”); provided, that the Company shall promptly (a)
notify the Purchaser in writing of the existence of (but in no event, without obtaining an agreement from the Purchaser agreeing to keep the information
confidential, shall the Company disclose to such Purchaser any of the facts or circumstances regarding) material non-public information giving rise to an
Allowed Delay, (b) advise the Purchaser in writing to cease all sales under the registration statement until the end of the Allowed Delay and (c) use
commercially reasonable efforts to terminate an Allowed Delay as promptly as practicable.
 

(i)            Other Registration Rights Agreements.  Other than as set forth on Schedule 3(b)(iii), the Company may not grant registration
rights to holders of their capital stock that are better than the rights granted to the other investors in the Offering.
 
Pursuant to Section 11(b) of this Agreement, the Placement Agent may, in its sole discretion, waive any of the foregoing covenants of the Company in this
Section 9, on behalf of the Purchaser.
 

10.           Conditions to Closing.
 

(a)           Conditions to the Company’s Obligation to Sell.  The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and sell the Shares to the
Purchaser is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the applicable Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the
Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:
 

(i)            The Purchaser shall have complied with Section 2(a);
 

(ii)           The representations and warranties of the Purchaser shall be true and correct in all material respects; and
 

(iii)          No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered,
promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the
matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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(b)           Conditions to Each Purchaser’s Obligation to Purchase.  The obligation of the Purchaser hereunder to purchase the Shares is
subject to the satisfaction, at or before the applicable Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the Purchaser’s
sole benefit and may be waived by the Purchaser at any time in his/her/its sole discretion:
 

(i)            The Company shall have complied with Section 2(c);
 

(ii)           The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct as of the applicable Closing Date, and the
Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied
or complied with by the Company at or prior to the applicable Closing Date.  The Purchaser shall have received a certificate or certificates, executed by the
chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the applicable Closing Date, to the foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably
requested by the Purchaser including, but not limited to certificates with respect to the Company’s charter, by-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions
relating to the transactions contemplated hereby;
 

(iii)          No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered,
promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the
matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
 

(iv)          No event shall have occurred which would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect;
 

(v)           The Company shall have caused its legal counsel, Richardson & Patel LLP to deliver a legal opinion addressed to the
Purchaser with respect to the matters set forth on Exhibit D attached hereto; and
 

(vi)          The Company shall have provided such other documents as the Placement Agent may reasonably request, each in form
and substance satisfactory to the Placement Agent.
 

11.           Miscellaneous.
 

(a)           Governing Law.  This Agreement and all acts and transactions pursuant hereto and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto
shall be governed, construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington, without giving effect to principles of conflicts of law.
 

(b)           Entire Agreement; Enforcement of Rights.  This Agreement together with the exhibits and schedules attached hereto, set forth the
entire agreement and understanding of the parties relating to the subject matter herein and supersedes any and all prior agreements or discussions between
them, including any term sheet, letter of intent or other document executed by the parties prior to the date hereof relating to such subject matter.  No
modification of or amendment to this Agreement, nor any waiver of any rights under this Agreement, shall be effective unless in writing signed by the parties
to this Agreement; provided, however, that the Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the Placement Agent may, in its sole discretion acting by prior written
consent on behalf of Purchaser, waive any covenant of the Company described in Section 6 and Section 9.  The failure by either party to enforce any rights
under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights of such party.
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(c)           Severability.  If one or more provisions of this Agreement are held to be unenforceable under applicable law, the parties agree to
renegotiate such provision in good faith.  If the parties cannot reach a mutually agreeable and enforceable replacement for such provision, then (i) such
provision shall be excluded from this Agreement, (ii) the balance of the Agreement shall be interpreted as if such provision were so excluded and (iii) the
balance of the Agreement shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms.
 

(d)           Construction.  This Agreement is the result of negotiations between and has been reviewed by each of the parties hereto and their
respective counsel, if any; accordingly, this Agreement shall be deemed to be the product of all of the parties hereto, and no ambiguity shall be construed in
favor of or against any one of the parties hereto.
 

(e)           Notices.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed sufficient when delivered
personally or sent by fax or 48 hours after being deposited in the U.S. mail, as certified or registered mail, with postage prepaid, and addressed to the party to
be notified at such party's address or fax number as set forth below or as subsequently modified by written notice.
 

(f)            Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of
which together shall constitute one instrument.
 

(g)           Successors and Assigns.  The rights and benefits of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the
Company's successors and assigns.  The covenants and obligations of the Company hereunder, including without limitation the registration obligations
described in Section 9, shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Purchaser against the Company, its successors and assigns, including any entity
into which the Company is merged.  The rights and obligations of Purchaser under this Agreement may only be assigned with the prior written consent of the
Company; provided, however, that if the Purchaser distributes the Shares to the Purchaser Stockholders, the piggy back registration rights granted pursuant to
Section 9(c) shall be assignable without the prior written consent of the Company to those Purchaser Stockholders that are unable to sell Shares distributed to
them by the Purchaser as a non-affiliate (as defined under Rule 144 of the Securities Act) under Rule 144 of the Securities Act.
 

(h)           Third Party Beneficiary.  This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the undersigned parties and their respective permitted
successors and assigns, and the Placement Agent, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other person.
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(i)            Further Assurances.  Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and
shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out
the intent and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
 

(j)            Expenses.  Each party shall pay all costs and expenses that it incurs with respect to the negotiation, execution, delivery and
performance of the Agreement; provided, however, that the Company shall, on the First Closing Date, reimburse the fees and expenses of Manatt as counsel
to the Placement Agent and Purchaser, up to $30,000.
 

(k)           Survival.  The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made herein shall survive the closing of the transaction
contemplated hereby.  All statements as to factual matters contained in any certificate or other instrument delivered by or on behalf of the Company pursuant
hereto in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby shall be deemed to be representations and warranties by the Company hereunder solely as of
the date of such certificate or instrument.  The representations, warranties, covenants and obligations of the Company, and the rights and remedies that may be
exercised by the Purchaser, shall not be limited or otherwise affected by or as a result of any information furnished to, or any investigation made by or
knowledge of, any of the Purchaser or any of their representatives
 

(l)            Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event that any suit or action is instituted under or in relation to this Agreement, including without
limitation to enforce any provision in this Agreement, the prevailing party in such dispute shall be entitled to recover from the losing party all fees, costs and
expenses of enforcing any right of such prevailing party under or with respect to this Agreement, including without limitation, such reasonable fees and
expenses of attorneys and accountants, which shall include, without limitation, all fees, costs and expenses of appeals.
 

(m)           Remedies.  All remedies afforded to any party by law or contract, shall be cumulative and not alternative and are in addition to all
other rights and remedies a party may have, including any right to equitable relief and any right to sue for damages as a result of a breach of this
Agreement.  Without limiting the foregoing, no exercise of a remedy shall be deemed an election excluding any other remedy.
 

(n)           Consent of Spouse.  If the Purchaser is married on the date of this Agreement, such Purchaser’s spouse shall execute and deliver
to the Company the Spousal Consent, effective on the date hereof.  Notwithstanding the execution and delivery thereof, such consent shall not be deemed to
confer or convey to the spouse any rights in such Purchaser’s Shares that do not otherwise exist by operation of law or the agreement of the parties.  If any
Purchaser should marry or remarry subsequent to the date of this Agreement, such Purchaser shall within thirty (30) days thereafter obtain his/her new
spouse’s acknowledgement of and consent to the existence and binding effect of all restrictions contained in this Agreement by causing such spouse to
execute and deliver a Consent of Spouse acknowledging the restrictions and obligations contained in this Agreement and agreeing and consenting to the same.
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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The Purchaser, by his or her signature below, or by that of its authorized representative, confirms that Purchaser has carefully reviewed and understands
this Agreement.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Purchaser has executed this Agreement as of April 20, 2011.
 
PURCHASER (if individual):  PURCHASER (if entity):
   
  Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.
Signature  Name of Entity
   
  By: /s/ Gary Schuman       
Name (type or print)   
   
  Name:Gary Schuman       
   
  Its: Chief Financial Officer  
Signature of Co-Signer (if any)   
   
   
Name of Co-Signer (type or print)   
 
AGREED AND ACCEPTED as of April 20, 2011.
 
CLEARSIGN COMBUSTION CORPORATION

 
By: /s/ Rick Rutkowski  
Rick Rutkowski, President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
I, Christopher A. Marlett, Chief Executive Officer of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc., certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
Quarterly Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this  report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Quarterly Report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Quarterly Report is being prepared;
(b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Quarterly Report,  our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report based on such evaluation;
and
(d)   Disclosed in this Quarterly Report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the  registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Dated:  May 16, 2011 By:  Christopher A. Marlett  
 /s/   
 Christopher A. Marlett  
 Chief Executive Officer  
 
 



Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gary A. Schuman, Chief Financial Officer of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011 of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
Quarterly Report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this  report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Quarterly Report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))
for the registrant and have:

(a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this Quarterly Report is being prepared;
(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Quarterly Report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report based on such evaluation;
and
(d)   Disclosed in this Quarterly Report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

 
Dated: May 16, 2011 By:  Gary A. Schuman  
 /s/   
 Gary A. Schuman  
 Chief Financial Officer  
 
 



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
I, Christopher A. Marlett, Chief Executive Officer of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.  (the "Company"), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
1. The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, which this certification accompanies (the "Periodic

Report"), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
2. The information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
 
Dated:  May 16, 2011 /s/ Christopher A. Marlett  
  Christopher A. Marlett  
  Chief Executive Officer  
 
 



Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 
I, Gary A. Schuman, Chief Financial Officer of Integrated Surgical Systems, Inc.  (the "Company"), hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
1. The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2011, which this certification accompanies (the "Periodic

Report"), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 
2. The information contained in the Periodic Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
 
Date Dated: May 16, 2011 /s/ Gary A. Schuman  
  Name Gary A. Schuman  
  Chief Financial Officer  
 
 


